
   March 5, 2013

MEMBERS OF THE CITY COUNCIL: 
Sandi Bloem, Mayor   

Councilmen Edinger, Goodlander, McEvers, Kennedy, Gookin, Adams 
 



CONSENT CALENDAR 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  1 

MINUTES OF A REGULAR MEETING OF THE CITY 
COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE, IDAHO, 

HELD AT THE LIBRARY COMMUNITY ROOM 
 

February 19, 2013 
 

The Mayor and Council of the City of Coeur d’Alene met in a regular session of said Council at 
the Coeur d’Alene Library Community Room February 19, 2013 at 6:00 p.m., there being 
present upon roll call the following members: 
 
Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
  
Loren Ron Edinger  )  Members of Council Present             
Mike Kennedy    )    
Woody McEvers                     )    
Dan Gookin   ) 
Deanna Goodlander  )   
Steve Adams   )  Members of Council Absent 
 
CALL TO ORDER:  The meeting was called to order by Mayor Bloem. 
 
INVOCATION: Led by Pastor Ron Hunter, Church of the Nazarene. 
 
PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  The pledge of allegiance was led by Councilman Kennedy.    
 
PRESENTATION OF ROAD SCHOLAR PROGRAM:  Bruce Drewes, Manager of Idaho 
Technology Transfer Center, stated that his organization provides training and technical 
assistance to transportation employees.  He presented awards to four City of Coeur d’Alene 
employees in honor of their completion of the “Road Scholar” program: Travis Galloway, Terry 
Leigh, Justin Kimberling, and Sharon Simon.  Councilman Goodlander stated that her son 
recently noted how terrific our streets are maintained in comparison to where he currently lives 
in Utah.  She said that we are spoiled her and thanked the crew for their good work.  Councilman 
Edinger stated that our street crew is the best in the Inland Northwest.  
 
PRESENTATION OF FALLEN HERO’S PLAZA VIDEO AWARD:   Parks Director Doug 
Eastwood stated that the City’s video regarding the Fallen Hero’s Plaza received an award from 
the American Video Association.   The first recognition was for Honorable Mention in the 
“Video Production Inspiration Category” and a “Gold” award for pro-bono production due to the 
in-kind contribution of Jeff Crowe in putting the video and narration together.  Mr. Eastwood 
provided a history of the creation of the park and thanked those involved in the idea and 
development of the park including the Police and Fire Associations that helped fund the video, 
Fred Ogram for his research and design for the plaza, the Parks Foundation for helping raise 
funds, and Jeff Crowe at Bunkhouse Media.  Mr. Eastwood played the video for the audience.   
 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  2 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:   
 
URBAN RENEWAL:  Russell McLain, Kootenai County, stated that he moved out of the City to 
get away from the taxes and spending.  He read Kathy Sims’ book and does not understand how 
LCDC is still affecting his taxes even though he does not live in the City.  He asked Councilman 
Goodlander to explain how Lakes Highway District is affected by LCDC by approximately 10%.  
Councilman Goodlander stated that all urban renewal districts affect county taxes and that how 
the money is being spent and acquired is a function of legislative direction.  She offered to meet 
with Mr. McLain and go over the way the legislature has set up the urban renewal district.  Mr. 
McLain stated that he thinks Post Falls is doing it differently and more appropriately.  
Councilman Kennedy stated he disagrees with the content of Ms. Sims’ book and that he would 
be willing to sit down with Mr. McLain and Mr. Berns to go over urban renewal.  Councilman 
Gookin stated that it is a legislative issue and that he believes Mr. Hayes at the County has the 
property tax information Mr. McLain is seeking.  
 
PERSON FIELD:  Bruce MacNeil, 524 N. 17th Street, stated that he was concerned about the 
Person and Bryan Field acquisition due to statements made by Councilman Edinger and 
Councilman Goodlander at the last City Council meeting.  He hopes the City Council would 
consider fairness, consistency of support of neighborhood parks, and be assertive in the support 
of where and when neighbor parks can be achieved.  As a city resident and taxpayer, he stated he 
would be willing to pay extra taxes for the acquisition of the two fields and believes others in the 
community feel the same way.   He believes that the aggressive support of McEuen should be 
mirrored for neighborhood parks.  
 
Lynn Schwindel, 735 4th Street, stated he believes the City should acquire the fields and be done 
with it.  He has witnessed more people using Bryan Field on the weekends than at Phippeny Park 
and supports the City acquiring both properties for $750,000.   
 
CONSENT CALENDAR:  Motion by Kennedy, seconded by Edinger to approve the consent 
calendar as presented. 
 
DISCUSSION:   Councilman Gookin stated that the Water Department did a great job at finding 
the pup trailer substantially under budget.   

 
1. Approval of minutes for February 5, 2013  
2. Approval of Bills as Submitted 
3. Setting of General Services and Public Works Committees meetings for February 25, 

2013 at 12:00 noon and 4:00 p.m., respectively. 
4. CONSENT RESOLUTION NO. 13-010 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR 

D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW 
MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF COEUR 
D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING A CONTRACT WITH RC WORST & CO. INC., 
FOR LANDINGS WELL PUMP REHABILITATION PROJECT AND AUTHORIZING 
THE REQUEST TO PURCHASE A 1988 PUP TRAILER FOR THE WATER 
DEPARTMENT. 

5. S-1-12 Cottage Grove First Addition, Final Plat 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  3 

 
ROLL CALL:  Edinger Aye; McEvers Aye; Goodlander Aye; Gookin Aye; Kennedy Aye.  Motion 
carried. 
 
COUNCIL ANNOUNCEMENTS: 
Councilman Gookin stated that he has been learning to run the video camera recording at some 
of the public meetings and appreciates the work the video crew does for Channel 19.   

ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT:    On February 6th, over 200 people participated in 3 
presentations regarding Community Visioning by long-range planner Steven Ames.  In a couple 
of weeks, Mr. Ames will report back to the City regarding how the community might proceed 
with a visioning project.  The McEuen Park design is complete and is out for bids.  The bid 
opening is now scheduled for March 5th at 10:00 a.m. with work to begin soon after.  There will 
be a continued City Council meeting on March 7, 2013 at 5:00 p.m.  The community should 
continue to expect Front Avenue to be closed from March 2013 to November 2013.   There are a 
lot of current events happening at the Coeur d’Alene Library.  The 25th Annual Writers 
Competition has begun.  Entry forms and rules are available at the library or can be downloaded 
from the library website, www.cdalibrary.org (deadline for entries is March 31st.)  Winners will 
be announced and cash prizes are awarded in each category and age group at a ceremony in May 
hosted by the Friends of the Coeur d’Alene Public Library.  The City will be sponsoring a 2nd 
annual Development Forum on February 28th at 11:30 a.m., in the Library Community Room.  
The forum is an opportunity for the building community – developers, builders, architects, and 
engineers to dialogue with city development-related staff with the goal of sharing information 
and listening to the development community to enable us to improve our processes and 
responsiveness.  The Water Department is starting on the first phase of construction of a new 
water well on Atlas Road just north of Hanley Avenue.  The Water Department is also preparing 
for their first construction project of the summer.  They will be replacing water service lines in 
portions of the Indian Meadows subdivision.  People with concerns or questions can call the 
Water Department at their main number 769-2210.  The City of Coeur d’Alene Arts Commission 
is seeking artists to participate in its “ArtCurrents” program.  Information packets are available at 
City Hall, or online at www.cdaid.org .  Artist proposals are due by 5:00 p.m., April 12, 2013.  
Additionally, the Arts Commission is seeking Artists for the Utility Box Beautification Project.  
Information packets are available at City Hall or online at www.cdaid.org .  Artist proposals are 
due by 5:00 p.m., April 19, 2013.  For more information, call Steve Anthony at 769-2249.   City 
staff recently met with Sheriff Wolfinger to discuss what effects a Labor Day unlimited 
hydroplane race will have on the City, even though the event will be held out of the city limits.  
The City will not be the first responders; however, the event sponsors expect 30,000 to 100,000 
visitors to the race that will come to and through Coeur d’Alene.  The Coeur d’Alene Lake Drive 
acquisition discussion will come forward in March.  Additionally, there has been discussion 
regarding the need for a contact person for the McEuen Park project for the neighborhood and 
business owners.  This contact person would provide similar outreach to the Mid-town and 
Education Corridor projects.  LCDC will be discussing this item, and possible funding, at their 
meeting tomorrow.   
 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  4 

PUBLIC HEARING:  WATER RATES/FEES:  Water Superintendent Jim Markley informed 
the City Council that this item was originally heard at the January 2, 2013 City Council meeting.  
Due to some concern regarding the public notice, staff determined it was in the best interest of 
the City to hold another hearing.  He stated that the consultant was available if anyone had 
specific questions.   Councilman Kennedy requested that the City Council move forward without 
a presentation.   
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS:  Mayor Bloem called for public comments with none being received.  

 
DISCUSSION:  Councilman Gookin stated that he voted against the fee increases originally and 
would again, as he would like less of an increase in the rates.  He stated that he did not feel that 
every item listed in the study is necessary at this time.  Councilman Goodlander stated that the 
consultant has stated that our water system is in great shape because the City has invested in the 
system over time and has been ahead of the game.  She stated that the citizens would not be 
asked to pay dramatic increases now or in the future due to the slow and steady investment in the 
system over time.  She believes that this is an important practice to continue.  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-011 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI COUNTY, IDAHO 
AMENDING THE RULES AND REGULATIONS OF THE COEUR D’ALENE WATER 
DEPARTMENT AS TO RATES, SCHEDULES AND CHARGES. 
 
MOTION by Kennedy, seconded by McEvers to adopt Resolution 13-011. 
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Goodlander Aye; Gookin No; Kennedy Aye; Edinger Aye. 
Motion carried. 
 
PERSON FIELD UPDATE:  Finance Director Troy Tymesen stated that the School District has 
provided the City with an appraisal of Bryan Field and a counter offer to sell Bryan and Person 
Field for the total price of $750,000.  Mr. Tymesen reread the motion made at the January 10, 2013 
meeting with the School District, which requested staff to allocate $650,000 for the purchase of 
Bryan and Person Field subject to a legal deed restriction.   At the same meeting, the School Board 
made a motion to sell both properties to the City for $750,000 pending completion of the appraisal 
of Bryan Field.  Mr. Tymesen reviewed the appraisal figures for Bryan Field, which was appraised 
at $3.70 sq. ft. for a price of $309,000 for the 1.91-acre parcel.  The Appraiser did include a note 
stating, “A potential buyer would not buy the subject property without a substantial price discount, 
knowing the City may not approve a use that would close the park...”   Mr. Tymesen is requesting 
the City Council to provide direction regarding the acquisition, noting that the two appraisals 
together would demonstrate a price of $964,000 based on R-12 zone.   
 
Councilman Goodlander asked for clarity regarding comparables provided in the Bryan Field 
appraisal.  Mr. Tymesen stated that a recent comparable dated August 2012 (south side of Harrison 
Avenue east of Lincoln Way) was a 1/3 acre parcel at $5.06 per sq. ft. zoned R-12.  Additional 
comparables include a parcel at Government Way $4.90 per sq. ft. (R-12); northeast and southeast 
corner of Bosanko and Cedarbloom (C-17) $5.00 sq. ft.; John Loop $5.07 per sq. ft. (C-17), West 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  5 

Haycraft at $3.70 sq. ft. and  a parcel on Fruitland Lane $4.57 sq. ft. (R-12.)  Councilman Edinger 
asked how much property does the City own at Person Field and how much property did the City 
trade to the School District behind Lake City High School.   Mr. Tymesen clarified the Person Field 
property is 3.2 acres and that the City traded approximately 6.8 acres behind Lake City High 
School.  Councilman Edinger stated that the draft copy of the Land Exchange Agreement with the 
School District states that the City was to receive 3.9 acres at Person Field.  Mr. Tymesen stated that 
the paper trail does note that the City was to receive the larger portion, but a second document 
amends that to clarify that the City would receive the 3.2-acre portion and the School District would 
keep the portion with the track.  Councilman Edinger stated that he agrees that the City should own 
Person Field and believes the City had a good faith agreement with the School District in 1995 and 
the City was being a good partner by giving a portion of the field back to the School District 
without asking for compensation.  He believes that the City Attorney has made comments that the 
price is too high, as the property should not have been appraised at an R-12 future use.  Mr. 
Tymesen stated that he looked at what the City paid for the 15th Street property, which is why the 
negotiation team estimated a $2.00 sq. ft. cost for parkland.   Mr. Tymesen clarified that at $2.00 sq. 
ft. for the Person property it would be $327,660.   Councilman McEvers stated that the City looks at 
the property as a park; the School Board says that they want it to stay a park, but they appraised it at 
R-12 not as a park.  He stated that he felt an easy way to fund the purchase of Person and Bryan 
Field would be to take it out of the McEuen budget.  Mr. Tymesen stated that he could not take 
from the McEuen project budget as urban renewal, which is the major funding mechanism, and 
neither parcel is in the urban renewal district.  
 
MOTION by Kennedy, seconded by Gookin to accept the $750,000 counter offer by the School 
District to purchase Bryan and Person Fields.  
 
DISCUSSION:   Councilman Kennedy stated that he does not like the way the acquisition of the 
fields came about and that this could be in litigation for years if the City Council does not move 
forward with the purchase.  He believes the Council has debated the purchase long enough and the 
goal has been to keep this land in public ownership.  He believes that the Finance Department can 
figure out how to allocate the resources so that the City Council can do the right thing by the 
taxpayer tonight.  Councilman Edinger stated that he would vote against the motion because he 
believes that the Agreement from 1995 was for the betterment of the School District and the City 
would be paying for something that it already owns.  Additionally, he thinks $750,000 is too much 
and that $2.00 per sq. ft. is a better price.  Councilman Edinger asked where the City would come 
up with the $750,000.  Mr. Tymesen stated that he would use fund balance and potentially liquidate 
an old asset known as the old Library.   Councilman Kennedy stated that he agrees with 
Councilman Edinger; however, it is time to cut the losses from an agreement from 18 years ago.   
He believes that the vote tonight is really a $95,000 vote, as the City Council already approved 
$655,000.   Mayor Bloem stated that one of the goals of the City is to acquire great public spaces.  
She stated that she is saddened that it has come to this type of negotiation, as in good faith the City 
gave property to the School District and both entities agree that the properties should remain parks 
and therefore should have been appraised as parks or reduced to the park value.  The obligation of 
the City is to acquire the property and keep it in the public realm.  Mr. Tymesen clarified that he 
would need City Council support when the budget amendment comes forward.  Councilman 
Goodlander stated that she does not believe that the School District has dealt fairly with the City, as 



 
 

CC February 19, 2013  6 

a result the citizens will double pay for public space which is not right.  She stated that she would 
uncomfortably vote yes to the motion.   
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Goodlander Aye; Gookin Aye; Kennedy Aye; Edinger No.  Motion 
carried. 
   
EXECUTIVE SESSION:  Motion by Gookin seconded by McEvers to enter into Executive 
Session as provided by I.C. 67-2345 § F:  To communicate with legal counsel for the public agency 
to discuss the legal ramifications of and legal options for pending litigation or controversies not yet 
being litigated but imminently likely to be litigated.  The mere presence of legal counsel at 
executive session does not satisfy this requirement.  
 
ROLL CALL:  McEvers Aye; Gookin Aye; Goodlander Aye; Kennedy Aye; Edinger Aye.   
Motion carried. 
 
The Council entered into Executive Session at 7:37 p.m.  Members present were the Mayor, City 
Council, City Administrator, Deputy City Attorney, Finance Director, and Deputy City 
Administrator. 
 
Matters discussed were the Coeur d’Alene North View Preservation lawsuit and a likely claim 
regarding a development approval.  No action was taken and the City Council returned to its 
regular session at 8:17 p.m. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Motion by Gookin, seconded by McEvers that, there being no further 
business before the Council, this meeting is adjourned.  Motion carried. 
 
The meeting adjourned at 8:17 p.m. 
 
 
       _____________________________ 
       Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
  
________________________ 
Renata McLeod,  
City Clerk  



Resolution No. 13‐012 1 | P a g e  

   

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 
 
  
 A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE, KOOTENAI  
COUNTY, IDAHO AUTHORIZING THE BELOW MENTIONED CONTRACTS AND 
OTHER ACTIONS OF THE CITY OF CO EUR D’ALENE INCLUDING APPROVING 
S-9-12 RIVERSTONE EAST – SUBDIVISION IMPROVEMENT AGREEMENT AND 
FINAL PLAT; RATIFICATION OF T HE 11TH STREET MARINA LANDL ORD’S 
CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT WITH TH E ELEVENTH STREET DOCKOWNERS 
ASSOCIATION, INC. AND APPROVING A PROFESSIONAL SERVI CES 
AGREEMENT WITH RUEN YEAGER & ASSOCIATES, INC. FOR FLOOD WORKS 
CERTIFICATION. 
        

WHEREAS, it has been recomm ended that the City of Coeur d’Alene enter in to 
the contract(s), agreement(s ) or other act ions listed below  pursuant to the term s and 
conditions set forth in the c ontract(s), agreement(s) and other action(s) docum ents 
attached hereto as Exhibits  “A through C” and by referen ce made a part hereof as 
summarized as follows: 

 
A) Approving S-9-12 Riverstone East – Subdivision Improvement Agreement 

and Final Plat; 
 
B) Ratification of the 11 th Street Marina Landlord’ s Consent to Assignm ent 

with the Eleventh Street Dockowners Association, Inc. ; 
 
C) Approving a Professional Services Agreem ent with Ruen Yeager & 

Associates, Inc. for Flood Works Certification; 
 
AND; 
 
WHEREAS, it is deem ed to be in th e best interests of the City of  Coeur d'Alene 

and the c itizens thereof to enter  into su ch agreements or other action s; NOW, 
THEREFORE, 
 

BE IT RESOLVED, by the Ma yor and City Council of th e City of Coeur d'Alene 
that the City enter into agreements or other actions for the subject matter, as set f orth in 
substantially the form attached hereto as Exhibits "A through C" and incorporated herein 
by reference with the provision that the Mayor, City Administrator, and City Attorney are 
hereby authorized to modify said agreem ents or other actions so long as the substantive 
provisions of the agreements or other actions remain intact. 
 



Resolution No. 13‐012 2 | P a g e  

   

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, that the Ma yor and City Clerk be and they are 
hereby authorized to execute such agreements or other actions on behalf of the City. 
 

DATED this 5th day of March, 2013.   
 
                                        
                                   Sandi Bloem, Mayor 
 
 
ATTEST 
 
 
      
Renata McLeod, City Clerk 
 
 
 
      
 
 

Motion by _______________, Seconded by _______________, to adopt the 
foregoing resolution.   
 
     ROLL CALL: 
 
 

COUNCIL MEMBER KENNEDY  Voted _____ 
 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOODLANDER Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER MCEVERS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER ADAMS  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER GOOKIN  Voted _____ 

 
COUNCIL MEMBER EDINGER  Voted _____ 

 
_________________________ was absent.  Motion ____________. 









EXHIBIT "A"

jknight
Typewritten Text
012



EXHIBIT "A"

jknight
Typewritten Text
012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



 
TO:   Mayor and City Council 
DATE:   March 5, 2013 
FROM:   Wendy Gabriel, City Administrator  
SUBJECT:  11th  Street Marina/Consent to Assignment 
---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
DECISION POINT: 
Determine whether to approve an assignment of the 11th Street Dock 
Owner’s Association lease to Washington Trust Bank should the Dock 
Owner’s Association default on its loan with the bank. 
 
BACKGROUND/HISTORY: 
For many years, the City, and the Idaho Water Company before it, has 
had a lease agreement with the Dock Owners Association or their 
predecessors to facilitate the operation of a marina at 11th Street. The 
City Council recently approved a lease renewal through 2016.   
 
Most recently, the 11th Street Dock Owners Association sought 
financing from Washington Trust Bank to make certain improvements 
to its property.   Washington Trust will acquire a security interest in 
certain collateral (the Lease Agreement) should the Dock Owner’s 
Association default on its loan.  Before financing is approved, 
Washington Trust Bank requires that the City consent to assignment of 
the Lease to Washington Trust Bank should the Dock Owner’s 
Association default. 
 
EVALUATION: 
The City Attorney has reviewed the assignment and has advised that it 
would be appropriate to execute.  If the Dock Owners Association 
defaults on its loan, Washington Trust Bank steps in its shoes relative 
to the lease as the lessee.  All terms of the lease remain unchanged 
should this occur. 
 
DECISION POINT/RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends that the City Council approve the assignment of lease as 
requested by the Dock Owners Association.  
 



ililililutilililililil
.0575 -

LANDLORD'S CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

Borrowel: Elovsnth Stroot Dockownors Association' Inc.
296 W. Sunsot Avonue, Suito 11
Coeui d'Alene, lD 83815

WASHINGTON TRUST BANK
Coour d'Al6no Commoicial Banking
218 L.kesido Avonuo
co€ur d'Alsns, lD 83814
t800t 7884578

L6nder:

THIS LANDLORD.S CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT is ontorod into among Elovonth Stroot Dockownors Association, Inc' l"Borrcwot"), who8o

uoa."" i" 296 w. Sunsot Av€nuo. suite 11. coour d'Alsne, lD 838t5; WASHINGTON TRUST BANK ("Londor"), whoso addtose is coour

diAlono Commorcial Banking, 218 Lakosido Avonuo, Coeui d'Al.no, lD 83814; and City of Coour d'Aleno ("Ltndto.d"l, whose addtoss is 710

Mullan Ave, Coour d.Alono;lD g3814. Borrower and Lendor have enter€d into, or are about to onter into, an agreemont whereby Lender has

o"qrireO oi *iff acquire a security int€rest or other interest in the Collator€|. Some or all of the Collateral may lg,riflixod or otherwise becomo

located on the premisos. To induce Lenderto oxtend the Loan to Borrower against such secority interest in the,Ciltateral snd for other valuable

has acquired or will acquire

Lsass Agreomont

consideration, Landlord herebY agrees with Lender and Eorrower as follows

coLLATERAL DESCRIPTION. The word "collateral" means certain ot Borrower's personal property in

a security interest, including withour limitation the following specific property:

lossee's Interest in the Soptombor 19, 2006 L6aso Agroomont and Lessss's Intorost in tho

BORROWER'S ASSIGNMENT OF LEASE' Borrower hereby assigns to Lender all of Borr

Loan. The partios intend th€t this assignment will be a present transfer to Lendor of
Borrower's rights to use the Premises and enjov th€ benetits of the Lease while not in

Borrower und-er the Loan, this assignment shall be ended, without the necessity of fl

in the
s rights

the Loan or Lease.
action by any ol rhe

full. Nq amgndments may

secLrrity tor tho
Leose, sLrbject to

by
assignmenl

to th€ Lease
includes all renewals ot and amendments to the Lease or the Loan, until the

without Lender's prior written consent. which shall not be unreasonably

CONSENT OF LANDLORD' Landlord consents to the above assignment lt

have no turther obligation to Landlord.

LEASE DEFAULTS. Both Borrower end Landlord agree and

liability under the Lease, including without
Borrower will remain fully liable tor all

Lender will cause alt payments due Llnder the
Lesse or vacates the Premises, Lender will

there is no breach or oflset
not to termin€le the Lease, desPite

the detault wilhin o period ol sixty (60)
(such as insolvency, bankruptcy, or other
receives all sums due under the Lease for

the Lease to a new lesseo reasonably

for the word "Note" under the Definitions subp€ragraph entitled
and without limitaiion all ol Borrower's promissory notes and/or credit

of Lender, with all renewals of, extensions oI, moditications ol, r€Iinancings

or credit

or the Lease, Lender may reassign
withheld or delayed. So long as

existing under the Lease or under any othor agreement betw
any deiault by Borrower, without giving Lender written notice
days trom the receipt ot the notice. ll the default is one that
jtrdicial proceedings ogainst Borrower), then Landlord -will 

not 1

ihe perioo during which Lender i3 in possession of the
satisfactory to Landlord.

AMENDMENT TO DEFINITION OF

Not6, the word "Note" when used in

agroements evidencing Borrower's
of, consolidations oI. and

MISCELLANEOUS
the respective heirs, Personal
Landlord respecting subordination
transleree or endorsee to whom
Agreement in
Stat€ ot ldaho.

f'purt of rhi" Agreement: This Agreement shall extend to and bind

the parties to this Agre€ment. The covenants of Borrower and

favor of Lender shsll extend to, include, and be enforceable by any

u;;"N1;1;i::g;t:ll;;rn" to which this Agreement shall apply. Lender need not accept.this
. T'his Agreement shall be governed bt and construed in accordance with the laws of the

any agen-t or other person;xecuting lhis Agreement on behall of Landlord represents and

,-ity to 
"ru"rt" 

this Agreement on Landlord's bohalt Lender shall not be deemed to

wiiver is in writing and signed by Lender' Without notice ro Landlord and without

br do anyrhing it deetis appropriate or necessary with respect to the Loan, any obligors

;ithout limit;tion extending, renewing, rearranging, or accelefating any oI the Loon

ith any Related Documents, constitutes lhe entire understanding and agreement of the parties as

r.to utt"r"rion of or amendment to this Agreoment shall be etfective unless given in writing and

warrants to
have waived
offecting
on the

to the
or bound by th€ alteration or amendmentsigned by the

NO WAIVER BY be d€emed to have waived anv rights under this Agreement unless such waiver is given in writing

and signed by "" ti]" 
p".t of Lender in exoicising any right shala operste as a w?ivor of such right 

"'. 9"y tl"j
right. A waiver bY ot tti" ngr""rn"nt shall not preiudict ot ioniritut" a waiver of Lender's right 

"th:tYl::,t-" i:1:19
strict compliance with o|' any orter piovision of this Agreement. No prior waiver by Lender, nor any course of d:"li1s,!"-ty-Y
Lender and Landlord, shall "-*L"iri"i "riv "i 

r-enaer's iigttls or of any oI Landlord's obligations as.to any futurs transaction^s'

Whenever lhe consent of i" ,"quir"o under this' Agreement, tht granting ol such consent bY Lender in.anv 'l:-ll"-: :111.::-l ,:"1"^t':'^1:
conrinuing consent ro subsequent insta'n'ce1-*iiJr" jJ"1 

"i.*iii I" ,"quii"o uniin all cases such consent mav be granted or withheld in the sole

discretion ol Lender'

SEVEBABILITY. lf s court ol competent iurisdiction tinds any plovision oI this Agreement to be illegal, invalid' or unenforceable as to onv

circumstance, that finding srratr not mJe-t,;; oitonaing provision ittegal, invalid, or uinenlorceable as to sny other circumstance lf leasible' rhe

oflending provision snall be consioerel .oOiiiuo 
"o 

ihat ir becom;s legal, valid and enlorceable lf the oltending provision cannot be so

modilied, it shall be considered o"r"t"Jtio-,ti" Agreement. Unless othlrwise required by law, the illegality'. invaliditv' or unentorceabilitv ot

;;;;;"i;; ; il; Asreemenr shoI not att"ct tne iegatity, vatidiry or entorceability ol eny other provision ol this Agreement.

DEFINITIONS. The tollowing cspitalized words and terms shall have rhe following meanings when.used in this Agreement unless specifically

stated to the contrary, all ."t"1unc"" to ootLi umounts shall mean amounts in lawiul monoy ol the Unitod States of America Words gnd terms

used in the singular shall include the prrrur, uno ,tt" plursl shall include the singular, 8s the cont€xt may-require words and terms not otherwise

i"iin"J i" trti" iigr""ment sh6ll have the meanings aitributed to such terms in ihe uniform commercial Code:

Agroemont. The word "Agreement' means this Landlord's consent to Assignment, as this Landlord's consent to Assignment may be

amended or modified trom tt." t.li.", tog"t'h"i wittr att exnirits and schedies attached to this Landlord's consent to Assignment trom

timo to time.
gorowor. The word ,,Borrower'. moans Eleventh Street Dockowners Agsociation, Inc. and includes all co_signers 6nd co-makers signing

the Note and alt their successors and assigns

collatoral. The word ,'collaterat'. m€ons all ot Borrower's right, title and interest in and to all the Collateral 6s described in tho collateral

Description section ol this Agreement'

Landlord. The word "Landlord means citY ot coeur d'Alene,.and is used for convenience purposes only- Landlord's interest in the

premises may be thar ot a f"" o-nji i"""orl "ut["io, 
o,. lienholder, or that ot any other holder ol en interest in the Premises which may

be, or may become, prior to the inlerest ol Lender'

Resolution No. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



Loan No: 322712-92497
LANDLORD'S CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT

(Continuedl Page 2

Loaso. The word "Lease" means that certain lease ot the Premises, dated December 20, 2O1 1, between Landlord and Borrower..

L6nder. The word "Lender" moans WASHINGTON TRUST BANK, its successors and sssigns

Loan. The word "Loan" means any and all loans and financial accommodations trom Lender to Eorrower whether now or hereafter
existing, and howover evidenced.

Noto, The word "Note" means the Note dated Novomber 8, 2012 and executed by Eleventh Street Dockowners Association, Inc. in the
principal amount oI S1,4OO,OOO.OO, together with all renewals oI, extensions of, moditications ot, rofinancings ot, consolidations of, and

substitutions lor the note or credit agreement

Prsmisos. The word "Promises" means the real propeny

Rolated Documsnts, The words "Related Documents" moan all promissory notes, credil agreemonts, loan agreements, environmental
agreements, guaranties, security agroements, mortgages, doeds oI trust, security deeds, collateral mortgages. and all other instruments,

agreements and documents, whether now or hereafter existing, executed in connection with the Loan.

BOf,ROWER AND LANDLORD ACKNOWLEDGE HAVING READ ALL THE PROVISIONS OF THIS LANDLORD'S CONSENT TO ASSIGNMENT,

AND BORROWER AND LANDLORD AGREE TO ITS TERMS, THIS AGREEMENT IS DATED NOVEMBER 8. 2012.

BORROWER:

ELEVENTH STREET DOCKOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC.

Jeff L6\rris, Vico Prosident of Elovonth Sttoot
Dockownors Association, Inc.

Dockowngis As3ociation, Inc.

T;G Pottor-Troasudi ot Elovonth stroot
Dockownors Association, Inc.

LANDLORD:

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE

Resolution No. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 1 of 8       

 LEASE AGREEMENT 
 
 THIS LEASE AGREEMENT, made and entered into this 20th day of December, 2011, by 
and between ELEVENTH STREET DOCKOWNERS ASSOCIATION, INC, an Idaho non-
profit corporation, hereinafter referred to as “ASSOCIATION”, and the CITY OF COEUR 
D'ALENE, a municipal corporation, organized and existing under and by virtue of the laws of 
the State of Idaho, hereinafter referred to as the “CITY”. 
 
W I T N E S S E T H: 
 
 DECLARATIONS 
 
 1. LESSEE is a non-profit recreation cooperative corporation organized and existing 

under and by virtue of the laws of the State of Idaho, having its principal place of 
business at 1100 East Lakeshore Drive, Coeur d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho. 

 
 2. LESSEE is engaged in the business of boat moorage and allied undertakings 

connected with a boat moorage business. 
 
 3. LESSEE is the successor in interest to that business, and marina heretofore 

conducted and operated by Ray Jones, thereafter operated and conducted by R.T. 
Rankin, subsequently operated by Eugene Compton, subsequently operated by 
Lafferty Transportation Company, subsequently operated by Coeur d'Alene 
Marine, Inc., and subsequently operated by Northwest Resorts, Inc. 

 
 4. The CITY is the successor in interest of the Idaho Water Company as to those 

properties and agreements hereinafter referred. 
 
 5. In September of 1964, Ray Jones and the Idaho Water Company did contract for 

the right of the Idaho Water Company to lay, operate, maintain, inspect, repair, 
replace and reconstruct two water lines across property hereinafter denominated, 
which at the present time is owned by LESSEE. 

 
 6. On the 1st day of September, 1964, the Idaho Water Company did enter into a 

contract with Ray Jones, granting accesses to Ray Jones across property then 
owned by the Idaho Water Company for the purpose of granting accesses upon 
properties owned by the Idaho Water Company to a then described warehouse 
building, herein in the agreement described as a "repair building." 

 
 7. On the 1st day of January, 1960, the Idaho Water Company entered into an 

agreement with Ray Jones for the purpose of granting the right of egress and 
ingress and the right to use certain riparian rights of the Idaho Water Company 
along the shoreline of Lake Coeur d'Alene, as was appurtenant unto that property 
generally referred to as the East bank of Tubbs Hill. 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 2 of 8       

 
 
 8. On the 28th day of August, 1969, the Idaho Water Company and Ray Jones did 

agree that the aforedescribed agreements and leases should be extended in effect, 
in operation, and in right to the 31st day of August, 1979. 

 
 9. On the 14th day of May, 1979, the CITY and Coeur d'Alene Marine, Inc., did 

agree that the aforesaid agreement and leases should be extended in effect, in 
operation and in right to the 30th day of August, 1989. 

 
 10. On the 30th of August, 1989, the CITY and Northwest Resorts, Inc., did agree 

that the aforesaid agreement and leases should be extended in effect, in operation 
and in right to the 31st day of August, 1991. 

 
 11. On the 20th day of August, 1991, the CITY and Northwest Resorts, Inc., did 

agree that the aforesaid agreement and leases should be extended in effect, in 
operation and in right to the 30th day of August, 1996. 

  
 12. On the 2nd day of May, 1995, the City and Northwest Investment Properties did 

agree the foresaid lease and agreement should be extended in effect, in operation 
and in right to the 30th day of August, 2001. 

 
 13. On the 17th day of August, 1998, Northwest Investment Properties transferred its 

interest in this agreement and leases to K.K&T Investments, L.L.C., an Idaho 
limited liability Company. 

 
 14. On the 12th day of November, 1998, K.K&T Investments, L.L.C., transferred its 

rights under the lease to Eleventh Street Dockowners Association, Inc., an Idaho 
non-profit corporation and in December of 2000, K.K&T Investments, L.L.C. 
transferred its ownership interest in the real property that is the subject of those 
prior agreements to JSBC Development Co., Inc. 

 
 15.  On the 31st day of August, 2001, the City and the Eleventh Street Dockowners 

Association, Inc. did agree that the lease and agreement should be extended in 
effect, in operation and in right until the 30th day of August, 2006. 

 
 16.   On the 19th day of September, 2006, the City and the Eleventh Street Dockowners 

Association, Inc. did agree that the lease and agreement should be extended in 
effect, in operation and in right until the 30th day of August, 2011. 

 
 17. The parties hereto do desire to enter into an agreement, redefining the rights of 

the parties in contemplation of extension of those relevant contract rights 
heretofore denominated, as well as modification thereof, upon the hereinafter 
described terms and conditions, and to consolidate all of said lease arrangements 
and agreement relating to these parties into this document for the purpose of 
consolidation thereof; Now, Therefore, 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 3 of 8       

 
 
 TERMS OF LEASE 
 
 FOR AND IN CONSIDERATION of the sum Six Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-five 
Dollars and fifty-five cents ($6,575.55) with an annual increase equivalent to the CPI in July of 
each year for the Western Region, rent to be paid in advance annually by LESSEE unto the 
CITY and in consideration of the further mutual grants, agreements, considerations and terms as 
hereinafter more particularly set forth, the parties do hereby mutually covenant and agree as 
follows: 
 
 1. Term:  The term of this agreement shall be for a period of five (5) years 
commencing on the 31st day of August, 2011 and having a termination at 12:00 midnight on the 
30th day of August, 2016. 
 
 2. The CITY does grant unto LESSEE, its successors or assigns, the right to 
maintain movable docks and dock storage and booms fronting or adjacent to the shoreline, 
describing as follows: 
 
  Commencing at a galvanized pipe on the shoreline of Lake Coeur 

d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho, said pipe being 908 feet, more or 
less, due East of the center of Section 24, Township 50 North, 
Range 4 West, B.M.; and following the shoreline in a northeasterly 
direction to a point on the southeast corner of the tract containing 
1.58 acres conveyed to the Consumers Company on January 23, 
1905, as recorded in Book 9 Deeds at page 623, records of 
Kootenai County, Idaho; 

 
 
which use and rights shall be utilized by LESSEE, its successors and assigns, for the purposes of 
maintaining docks and dock storage and moorage, subject to the following conditions: 
 

 A. Such docks have been largely reconstructed with the consent of the CITY, 
subsequent to the lease effective August 31, 1989.  The docks and floating 
boom are depicted on the attached Exhibit "A". Such docks and booms 
shall not be placed in a manner to further restrict the public or CITY's 
access to the described shoreline. 
 

 B. The CITY does reserve the right at all times to lay, maintain and operate 
water pipes to the waters of Lake Coeur d'Alene at or near said area, 
through the entire bay area, and the right to enter into said area for the 
purpose of maintaining, replacing and repairing the same. 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 4 of 8       

 
  
 C. LESSEE, its successors or assigns, at all times shall conduct its operation 

so as not to damage, injure or interfere with the intake water lines of the 
CITY from the waters of Lake Coeur d'Alene. 

  
 D. LESSEE agrees to notify the CITY in writing at least thirty (30) days prior 

to any alteration of the breakwater. 
 

 E. In the maintenance of those catwalks, boat slips, docks or boom slips, 
LESSEE does covenant and agree that it shall not maintain them in such 
close proximity to the land and shoreline of the above described property 
so as to prevent boat access to the area by the CITY for the purpose of 
maintaining, installing and reinstalling its intake water lines. 
 

 F. In consideration of those grants by the CITY unto LESSEE, its successors 
and assigns, LESSEE, for and on behalf of itself and its successors and 
assigns, expressly covenants and agrees that it shall indemnify and hold 
harmless the CITY against any and all actions, claims and damages, 
including costs, attorney fees and expenses of whatsoever kind or 
character, including third party claims arising from the use of that license 
and/or licenses granted by the CITY to LESSEE.  LESSEE does covenant 
and agree that they shall cause the CITY to be endorsed upon its existing 
liability coverage as an additionally named insured, which insurance shall 
carry limits of not less than One Million Dollars ($1,000,000 to thereby 
protect the city from any claim of any person arising out of or by virtue of 
the maintenance of the moorage operation upon the riparian water of that 
property hereinbefore described owned by the CITY. 
 

 G. LESSEE will repair any damage to turbidity water lines belonging to the 
CITY that are in the area of the lease and the Marina associated with this 
lease. 
 

 3. LESSEE shall remove debris from along the Tubbs Hill shoreline within ten (10) 
days of written notice from the CITY and shall agree to pay for any such removal occurring after 
the ten (10) day notice period. 
 
 4. The number of boat slips including side tie docking space shall be limited to one 
hundred and thirteen (113). 
  
 5. LESSEE shall not park boat trailers nor shall it allow its lessees to do so on 
streets except when actively loading or unloading boats. 
 
 6. LESSEE shall provide to the CITY for its sole and unrestricted use one hundred 
(100) linear feet of mooring space which shall be side dock tying space rather than full boat 
slips. The purpose and use of said dockage shall be for fire boats, patrol boats or other publicly 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 5 of 8       

owned or publicly used service boats, as depicted in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference.  The City shall have the right to allow such dockage space for 
use by the County Sheriff, Coast Guard, Coeur d’Alene Fire Department or any other public law 
enforcement, firefighting or administrative agency.  The dockage space shall not be assignable 
for use by private individuals.  Further rights and responsibilities of the parties are as follows: 

 
 
A. Association, for and on behalf of itself and its successors and assigns, 

expressly covenants and agrees that it shall hereby indemnify, defend, and 
hold the City harmless from all claims, actions, or damages of any kind 
including but not limited to costs, attorney fees and expenses of 
whatsoever kind or character, and including third party claims and 
description, which may accrue to or be suffered by any person or persons, 
corporation, or property by reason of Association’s agreement to allow 
City dockage space as provided in Section 6 of this agreement. In case any 
suit or action is brought against the City for damages arising out of, or by 
reason of any use as allowed under Section 6, Association will, upon 
notice to it of commencement of such action, defend the City at its sole 
cost and expense, and will satisfy any judgment after said action shall 
have been finally determined, if adverse to the City.  
 

B. City shall consult with Association’s electricians and subcontract with a 
licensed electrician to tap into the marina’s wiring to provide shore power 
and pay for the use of electrical power. 
 

C. City shall not impair the use of the marina by Association members and 
guests and will repair any damage caused to the marina or the 
Association’s property by the City’s use. 
 

D. Association agrees to provide sufficient keys for access by authorized fire 
department personnel and agrees to provide for emergency use of 
Association’s boat ramp. 

 
 7. Lessee shall provide to the public the following amenities for the benefit of the 
public: 
   

 A. Sanitary Pump Station to service boats on Lake Coeur d’Alene as depicted 
in Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

 B. The placement of a floating boom, as depicted in Exhibit “A” attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference, to protect the use of the 
beach area immediately adjacent to the “old pump house” at the Tubbs 
Hill east entrance, and the policing and maintenance of the shore line and 
waters within the interior of the boom and the existing docks.  

 
 C. The attachment of Exhibit “A” and its incorporation into this lease by 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 6 of 8       

reference is for the sole purpose of depicting the location of the public 
amenities set out in Paragraphs 6 and 7 and for no other purpose. 
  

 8. Upon the commencement of the term of this agreement, LESSEE shall pay in 
cash to the CITY the sum Six Thousand Five Hundred Seventy-five Dollars and fifty-five cents 
($6,575.55).   
 
 9. Prior to the execution of this lease, LESSEE shall file with the CITY, in a form 
acceptable to the CITY, certificates showing that the insurance requirements herein set forth 
have been placed in force and effect. 
 
 10. Lessee shall maintain a valid State of Idaho encroachment permit for any 
encroachment within the City’s littoral rights which are leased herein. 
 
 11. Association shall not assign its obligation or rights under this lease to a third party 
without written approval from the CITY. 
 
 12. This agreement shall be binding upon the parties heretofore the term herein stated 
and in accordance with and pursuant to the terms and conditions hereof and shall inure to the 
benefit of the successors and assigns of the parties hereto. 
 
 13. At the term end of this agreement, the City agrees to negotiate in good faith with 
the Lessee, is successors and assigns, for one (1) additional five (5) year term upon such terms as 
the parties may mutually agree.   
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Lease the day and year first above 
written. 
 
LESSOR:                      LESSEE: 
CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE   ELEVENTH STREET DOCKOWNERS 

ASSOCIATION INC.  
 
_________________________      By:  __________________________ 
Sandi Bloem, Mayor         James Hail, President 
       
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_________________________  
Susan K. Weathers, City Clerk         

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 7 of 8       

 
STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this 20th day of December, 2011, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared Sandi 
Bloem and Susan K. Weathers, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of 
the city of Coeur d' Alene that executed the fo regoing instrument and acknowledged to m e that 
said city of Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
                              ______________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at __________________ 
                              My Commission expires: 
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ______ day of December, 2011, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
_______________________ of the Eleventh Street Dockowners Association, Inc, who 
subscribed said lim ited non-profit corporation nam e to the foregoing instrum ent, and 
acknowledged to me that Eleventh Street Dockowners Association, Inc., executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
          
        ________________________________ 
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at ____________________ 
                              My Commission Expires: 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



 
Lease Agreement re Resolution No. 11-041:     Page 8 of 8       

 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012 EXHIBIT "B"



CITY COUNCIL 
STAFF REPORT 

 
 
DATE:   March 05, 2013 
FROM:         Gordon Dobler, City Engineer 
INITIATED BY: Kim Harrington, Assistant Project Manager 
SUBJECT:  City of Coeur d’Alene Flood Works Certification Project 
 
 
 
DECISION POINT: 
Staff is requesting approval for the Professional Services Contract (phase 1) with Ruen-
Yeager Inc. for the City of Coeur d Alene Flood Works Certification Project. 
 
HISTORY: 
Staff presented the request for qualifications at the December 04, 2012 Council meeting. 
Council provided approval and direction to move forward with the process of selecting a 
consultant and negotiating the scope of services.                    

 
FINANCIAL ANALYSIS: 
The total cost to obtain certification are dependent on the what analysis and evaluation 
will be required by FEMA.  This is an unknown quantity until we complete the first phase 
of the process, the preliminary assessment.  We have budgeted $250,000 for the current 
fiscal year, the remaining cost will be determined when this phase is complete, and 
included in next year’s budget.  North Idaho College has agreed to fund half of the 
current total budget, not to exceed $125,000.00.  The cost for first phase is $86,295. 
 
PERFORMANCE ANALYSIS: 
Two statements of qualifications were received in reference to this project (Ruen-Yeager 
Inc. and Mead & Hunt).  A selection committee comprised of four city employees and 
two North Idaho College staff members, unanimously selected Ruen-Yeager, Inc. as the 
successful firm.  The certification process will consist of three phases as follows; Phase 
1 – Preliminary assessment, Phase 2 – Evaluation, Phase 3 – Final Certification.  Staff 
has negotiated the scope and cost for the first phase.  This work will take approximately 
3-4 months.  When the first Phase is complete, the scope and cost for the remaining 
phases will be negotiated.  The certification process is expected to take 2-3 years. 
  
RECOMMENDATION: 
Staff recommends a motion to approve the professional services contract with Ruen-
Yeager, Inc. for Phase 1 of  the City of Coeur d’ Alene Flood Works Certification Project. 
 
 
 



Resolution No. 13‐012 1 | P a g e          

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
between 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE 
and 

RUEN-YEAGER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
for 

CITY OF COEUR D ALENE FLOOD WORKS CERTIFICATION PROJECT 
 

THIS Agreement, made and entered into this 5th day of March, 2013, between the CITY OF 
COEUR D'ALENE, Kootenai County, Idaho, a municipal corporation organized and existing under 
the laws of the state of Idaho, herein after referred to as the "City," and RUEN-YEAGER & 
ASSOCIATES, INC., an Idaho  Corporation, with its principal place of business at 3201 N. Huetter 
Road Suite 102, Coeur d’Alene, Idaho 83814, hereinafter referred to as the "Consultant". 
 

W I T N E S S E T H: 
 

Section 1. Definition.  In this agreement: 
 
A. The term "City" m eans the City of Coeur d'Alene, 710 Mullan Avenue, Coeur 

d'Alene, Idaho 83814. 
 

B. The term "Consultant" means Ruen-Yeager & Associates, Inc.  
 
C. The term "Mayor" means the mayor of the City of Coeur d'Alene or his authorized 

representative. 
 

Section 2. Employment of Consultant.  The City hereby agrees to engage the Consultant 
and the Consultant hereby agrees to perform the services hereinafter set forth. 
 

Section 3. Scope of Services. 
 

A. The Consultant shall perform the services described in the Scope of Services attached 
hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Exhibit “A”. 
 

B. Area Covered: The Consultant shall perform all the necessary services provided under 
this Agreement respecting the tasks set forth in the Scope of Services. 
 

Section 4. Personnel. 
 

A. The Consultant represents that it has or will secure at its own expense all personnel 
required to perform its services under this Agreement.  Such personnel shall not be employees of or 
have any contractual relationship with the City. 
 



Resolution No. 13‐012 2 | P a g e          

B. All of the services required hereunder will be performed by the Consultant or under 
his direct supervision, and all personnel engaged in  the work shall be fully qualified and shall be 
authorized under state and local law to perform such services. 
 

C. The Consultant agrees to m aintain Workmen's Compensation coverage on all 
employees, including employees of subcontractors, during the term of this Agreement as required by 
Idaho Code Section 72-101 through 72-806.  Should the Consultant fail to maintain such insurance 
during the entire term hereof, the Consultant shall indemnify the City against any loss resulting to 
the City from such failure, either by way of  compensation or additional premium liability.  The 
Consultant shall furnish to the City, prior to commencement of the work, such evidence as the City 
may require guaranteeing contributions which will come due under the Employment Security Law 
including, at the option of the City, a surety bond in an amount sufficient to make such payments. 
 

Section 5. Time of Performance. The services of the Consultant shall commence upon 
execution of this Agreement by the Mayor and shall be completed within Sixty (60) days thereafter.  
The period of  performance may be extended f or additional periods only by the m utual written 
agreement of the parties. 
 

Section 6. Compensation. 
 

A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the City shall pay the Consultant the total 
sum of Eighty-Six Thousand Two Hundred Ninety-Five dollars and No/100 ($86,295.00). 
 

B. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreem ent, the City shall not provide any 
additional compensation, payment, use of facilities, service or other thing of value to the Consultant 
in connection with performance of agreement duties.  The parties understand and agree that, except 
as otherwise provided in this Section, administrative overhead and other indirect or direct costs the 
Consultant may incur in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have already been 
included in computation of the Consultant's fee and may not be charged to the City. 
 

Section 7. Method and Time of Payment.  The City will pay to the Consultant the 
amount set forth in Section 6 which shall constitu te the full and com plete compensation for the 
Consultant's professional services.  Monthly progress payments must be submitted by the 10th of the 
month for work done in the previous calendar month.  Partial payment shall be made by the end of 
each calendar month on a duly certified estimate of the work completed in the previous calendar 
month. 
 

Section 8. Termination of Agreement for Cause.  If, through any cause, the Consultant 
shall fail to fulfill in a tim ely and proper manner his obligations under this Agreem ent, or if the 
Consultant shall violate any of the covenants, agreements, or stipulations of this Agreement, the City 
shall thereupon have the right to terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to the Consultant 
of such termination and specifying the effective da te thereof, at least five (5) days before the 
effective date of such termination.  In that event, all finished or unfinished documents, data, studies, 



Resolution No. 13‐012 3 | P a g e          

surveys, and reports or other material prepared by the Consultant under this agreement shall at the 
option of the City becom e its property, and the C onsultant shall be entitled to receive just and 
equitable compensation for any satisfactory work com pleted on such docum ents and materials.  
Equitable compensation shall not exceed the amount reasonably billed for work actually done and 
expenses reasonably incurred. 
 
 Section 9. Termination for Convenience of  City.  The City m ay terminate this 
Agreement at any tim e by giving thirty (30) da ys written notice to the Consultant of  such 
termination and specifying the effective date of such  termination.  In that event, all finished or 
unfinished documents and other materials as described in Section 8 above shall, at the option of the 
City, become its property. 
 

Section 10. Modifications. The City may, from time to time, require modifications in the 
scope of services of the Consultant to be performed under this Agreement.  The type and extent of 
such services cannot be determined at this time; however, the Consultant agrees to do such work as 
ordered in writing by the City, and the City agrees  to compensate the Consultant for such work 
accomplished by written amendment to this Agreement. 
 

Section 11. Equal Employment Opportunity.   
 

A. The Consultant will not discrim inate against any em ployee or applicant f or 
employment because of race, color, religion, sex, or  national origin.  The Consultant shall take 
affirmative action to ensure that applicants ar e employed and that em ployees are treated during 
employment without regard to their race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  Such actions shall 
include, but not be lim ited to the following: em ployment, upgrading, dem otions, or transfers; 
recruitment or recruitm ent advertising; layof fs or terminations; rates of pay or other form s of 
compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and participation in recreational and 
educational activities.  The Consultant agrees to post in conspicuous places available for employees 
and applicants for em ployment, notices to be  provided setting forth the provisions of this 
nondiscrimination clause.  The Consultant will, in all solicitations or advertisements for employees 
placed by or on behalf of the Consultant, state that all qualified applicants will receive consideration 
for employment without regard to race, color, religion, sex, or national origin.  The Consultant will 
cause the foregoing provisions to be inserted in  all subcontracts for any work covered by this 
agreement so that such provisions will be binding upon each subconsultant, provided that the 
foregoing provisions shall not apply to contracts or subcontracts for standard commercial supplies or 
raw materials. 
 

B. The Consultant shall keep such records and submit such reports concerning the racial 
and ethnic origin of applicants for employment and employees as the City may require. 
 

Section 12. Interest of Members of City and Others. No officer, member, or employee 
of the City and no member of its governing body, and no other public official of the governing body 
shall participate in any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his personal interest or the 



Resolution No. 13‐012 4 | P a g e          

interest of any corporation, partnership, or associ ation in which he is, directly or indirectly, 
interested or has any personal or pecuniary interest , direct or indirect, in this Agreem ent or the 
proceeds thereof. 
 

Section 13. Assignability. 
 

A. The Consultant shall not assign any interest in this Agreement and shall not transfer 
any interest in the same (whether by assignment or novation) without the prior written consent of the 
City thereto.  Provided, however, that claims for money due or to become due to the Consultant from 
the City under this Agreem ent may be assigned to a bank, trust com pany, or other financial 
institution without such approval.  Notice of any such assignment or transfer shall be furnished 
promptly to the City. 
 

B. The Consultant shall not delegate duties or otherwise subcontract work or services 
under this Agreement without the prior written approval of the City. 
 

Section 14. Interest of Consultant.  The Consultant covenants that he presently has no 
interest and shall not acquire any interest, direct or indirect, which would conflict in any manner or 
degree with the perform ance of services require d to be perform ed under this Agreem ent.  The 
Consultant further covenants that in the performance of this Agreement, no person having any such 
interest shall be employed. 
 

Section 15. Findings Confidential.  Any repor ts, information, data, etc., given to or 
prepared or assembled by the Consultant under this Agreement which the City requests to be kept 
confidential shall not be made available to any individual or organization by the Consultant without 
the prior written approval of the City. 
 
 Section 16. Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials. No material produced, in 
whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in the United States or in any 
other country.  The City shall have unrestricte d authority to publish, disclose, distribute and 
otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports , data or other m aterials prepared under this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 17. Audits and Inspection.  This Agr eement anticipates an audit by the city of 
Coeur d’Alene, and infrequent or occasional review of Consultant's documents by City staff.  During 
normal business hours, there shall be made available for examination all of the Consultant's records 
with respect to all matters covered by this Agreement and will permit representatives of the City to 
examine, and make excerpts or transcripts from such records, and to make audits of all contracts, 
invoiced materials, payrolls, records, or personnel conditions of employment, and other data relating 
to all matters covered by this Agreement. 
 

Section 18. Jurisdiction; Choice of Law. Any civil action arising from this Agreement 
shall be brought in the District Court for the First Judicial District of the State of Idaho at Coeur 



Resolution No. 13‐012 5 | P a g e          

d'Alene, Kootenai County, Idaho.  The law of the state of Idaho shall govern the rights and 
obligations of the parties. 
 

Section 19. Non-Waiver. The failure of the City at any time to enforce a provision of this 
Agreement shall in no way constitute a waiver of the provisions, nor in any way affect the validity of 
this Agreement or any part thereof, or the right of the City thereaf ter to enforce each and every 
protection hereof. 
 

Section 20. Permits, Laws and Taxes.  The Consultant shall acquire and maintain in good 
standing all perm its, licenses and other docum ents necessary to its perform ance under this 
Agreement.  All actions taken by the Consultant  under this Agreem ent shall com ply with all 
applicable statutes, ordinances, rules, and regulations.  The Consultant shall pay all taxes pertaining 
to its performance under this Agreement. 
 

Section 21. Relationship of the Parties.  Th e Consultant shall perform  its obligations 
hereunder as an independent contractor of the City.  The City may administer this Agreement and 
monitor the Consultant's compliance with this Agreement but shall not supervise or otherwise direct 
the Consultant except to provide recom mendations and to provide approvals pursuant to this 
Agreement. 
 

Section 22. Integration.  This instrum ent and all appendices and am endments hereto 
embody the entire agreement of the parties.  There are no promises, terms, conditions, or obligations 
other than those contained herein; and this Agreement shall supersede all previous communications, 
representations or agreements, either oral or written, between the parties. 
 

Section 23. City Held Harmless.   
 

A. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, indemnify, and defend the City, its officers, 
agents and employees from any liability arising out  of the acts, errors, omissions, or negligence, 
including costs and expenses, for or on account of any and all legal actions or claim s of any 
character resulting from injuries or damages sustained by any person or persons or property arising 
from Consultant's performance of this Agreement in any way whatsoever.  
 

B. The Consultant shall save, hold harmless, and indemnify the City, its officers, agents, 
and employees from and against any and all dam ages or liability arising out of  the Consultant's 
professional acts, errors, and omissions, including costs and expenses for or on account of any and 
all legal actions claims of any character resulting from injuries or damages sustained by persons or 
property arising from Consultant's professional performance of this Agreement.  
 

Section 24. Notification. Any notice under th is Agreement may be served upon the 
Consultant or the City by mail at the address provided in Section 1 hereof. 

 



Resolution No. 13‐012 6 | P a g e          

Section 25. Special Conditions.  Standard of Performance and Insurance. 
 
A. Consultant shall maintain general liability insurance naming the City, its entities, and 

its representatives as additional insureds in the amount of at least $500,000.00 for property damage 
or personal injury, death or loss as a result of any one occurrence or accident regardless of the 
number of persons injured or the number of claimants, it being the intention that the minimum limits 
shall be those provided for under Chapter 9, Title 6, Section 24 of the Idaho Code.  
   

B. In performance of professional services, the Consultant will use that degree of care 
and skill ordinarily exercised under sim ilar circumstances by m embers of the Consultant' s 
profession.  Should the Consultant or any of the Consultants’ em ployees be found to have been 
negligent in the perform ance of professional services from which the City sustains dam age, the 
Consultant has obtained Errors and Om ission Insurance in at least the am ount of five hundred 
thousand dollars ($500,000.00).  The Consultant shall maintain, and furnish proof thereof, coverage 
for a period of two years following the completion of the project. 
 

C. The Consultant shall obtain and m aintain auto liability insurance in the am ount of 
$500,000.00 for the duration of the project. 
 

D. Prior to work under this Agreement, the Consultant shall furnish to the City certificates 
of the insurance coverages required herein, which certificates must be approved by the City Attorney.  
Certificates shall provide cancellation notice information that assures at least thirty (30) days written 
notice to the City prior to cancellation of the policy for any reason. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this Agreement executed the day and year first written above. 
 

CITY OF COEUR D'ALENE               RUEN-YEAGER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 
 
 
 
 
_______________________________  By        
Sandi Bloem, Mayor     Its       
 
 
 
ATTEST:      ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________  _____________________________ 
Renata McLeod, City Clerk    Name/Title 



Resolution No. 13‐012 7 | P a g e          

STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this 5th day of March, 2013, before m e, a Notary Public, personally appeared Sandi 
Bloem and Renata McLeod, known to me to be the Mayor and City Clerk, respectively, of the City 
of Coeur d'Alene that executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged to me that said City of 
Coeur d'Alene executed the same. 
 
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day 
and year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at      
                              My Commission expires:     
 
 
 
 
STATE OF IDAHO    ) 
                      ) ss. 
County of Kootenai   ) 
 
     On this ______ day of March, 2013, before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared 
___________________________, known to me to be the President, of Ruen-Yeager & Associates, 
Inc., and the persons who executed the foregoing inst rument on behalf of said corporation, and 
acknowledged to me that such corporation executed the same. 
  
     IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my Notarial Seal the day and 
year in this certificate first above written. 
 
 
 
                                     
                              Notary Public for Idaho 
                              Residing at      
                              My Commission Expires:    
 



 
 
 
 

3201 North Huetter Road, Suite 102, Coeur d'Alene, Idaho  83814, Phone: (208) 292-0820 Fax: (208) 292-0821 

219 Pine Street, Sandpoint, Idaho  83864, Phone: (208) 265-4629 Fax: (208) 263-0404 
 

RUEN-YEAGER & ASSOCIATES,  INC. 
E N G I N E E R S   ♦   P L A N N E R S   ♦   S U R V E Y O R S  

 

 
SCOPE OF SERVICES 

FOR THE 
CITY OF COEUR D’ALENE FLOOD WORKS CERTIFICATION 

PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT PHASE 
 

After meeting with City Staff it was decided that Ruen-Yeager & Associates (RYA) and their 
subconsultants would provide this initial scope of services in order to get the evaluation of the 
Flood Works underway and to provide a means to more precisely determine the scope and 
budget for the remainder of the evaluation.  The scope and fees required for RYA and each 
subconsultant are outlined below for the Preliminary Assessment Phase.  M anhour and fee 
estimate worksheets are attached to provide additional detail. 
 
Ruen-Yeager & Associates: 
 

1. Project Management: This task includes coordination, correspondence, and meetings with 
the City, North Idaho College, FEMA, Army Corps of Engineers, and other project 
stakeholders.  It includes scoping, scheduling, communication, and tracking of the work 
of the subconsultant team as well as work within RYA.  It also includes administration of 
the contract between the City and RYA as well as subconsultant agreements. 

 
2. Surveying: Surveying will be a coordinated effort between RYA and their aerial mapping 

subconsultant 3Di.  RYA surveyors will set aerial targets, provide supplemental ground 
topography where needed, survey individual trees on the levee, and review and combine 
the work of the aerial mapping subconsultant with RYA’s ground survey.  This task also 
includes research and mapping of property boundaries, easements, and rights-of-way 
adjacent to the Flood Works. 
 

3. Tie-In to High Ground Option Analysis: RYA and the evaluation team will review the 
original levee design plans, any documentation of adjustments, and perform a field visit 
to document how each end of the Flood Works exists today. Using ground topography we 
will provide preliminary options of how to tie each end of the levee to high ground 
(preferably at the original design top of levee elevation). 
 

4. Closure Option Analysis: RYA will walk the levee with the City and the evaluation team 
and to review levee closures.  We will review documentation of existing closure systems 
and make a preliminary determination if any adjustments should be made. 
 

5. Interior Drainage Review: RYA will obtain and review maps and design data for existing 
drainage systems within the potential inundation area and offsite contributing systems.  A 
field assessment will be performed to help determine the extent of these systems.  We 
will determine an approach to modeling internal drainage and if additional information 
needs to be gathered. 

 
RYA’s estimated fee to perform the above work is $39,363. 

RUEN-YEAGER & ASSOCIATES, INC. 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



Scope of Services for Preliminary Assessment Phase of Flood Works Evaluation 
February 26, 2013 
Page 2 
 
GeoEngineers: 
GeoEngineers will provide the following geotechnical and hydraulic engineering services for this 
initial preliminary assessment phase of this project.  
 

1. Preliminary Geotechnical Evaluation: 
 

• Review readily available existing information, including in-house reports, reports by 
others provided by the City of Coeur d’Alene and appropriate Federal Emergency 
Management Agency (FEMA) and U.S. Army Corps of Engineers (USACE) documents.    

• Conduct a site reconnaissance to evaluate the current condition of the flood works.  We 
will complete a preliminary visual evaluation of the structural condition of levee 
components and identify critical areas that will require detailed geotechnical analysis and 
evaluation.  This site visit will coincide with the team site visits noted above in RYA’s 
scope of services. 

• Develop with the project team a detailed work plan and associated schedule, scope and 
budget. 

2. Preliminary Hydraulic Evaluation: 
 

• Review readily available existing information, including in-house reports, reports by 
others provided by the City of Coeur d’Alene and appropriate FEMA and USACE 
documents. This includes FEMA’s Flood Insurance Studies (FIS) and Flood Insurance 
Rate Maps (FIRMs). 

• Order from FEMA the supporting technical information upon which the FIS and FIRMs 
are based. This includes readily available maps, calculations, reports and electronic 
copies of hydraulic models associated with the Flood Works. This task involves 
discussions with FEMA. 

• Conduct a site reconnaissance to evaluate the current condition of the flood works.  We 
will complete a preliminary visual evaluation of the condition of levee components to 
facilitate future hydraulic modeling efforts. GeoEngineers’ lead hydraulics engineer and 
staff-level engineer that will perform the majority of the future modeling efforts will 
participate in this reconnaissance effort. This site visit will coincide with the team site 
visits noted above in RYA’s scope of services. 

• Develop with the project team a detailed work plan and associated schedule, scope and 
budget. 

GeoEngineers’ estimated fee to perform the above work (1 and 2) is $20,067. 

  

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



Scope of Services for Preliminary Assessment Phase of Flood Works Evaluation 
February 26, 2013 
Page 3 
Anderson-Perry & Associates: 
 
The scope of work to be performed by AP reflects three meetings in Couer’d Alene with the City 
and agencies in March and April of 2013.  Work to be performed by AP will include the 
following: 

1. FEMA & Army Corps of Engineers meeting scheduling, attendance, coordination and 
communication.   

2. City and Work group meeting attendance.  
3. Review of reports and data produced by team members.  R evision of schedule and 

certification approach based on meetings with federal agencies and team members.     
 
AP’s estimated fee to perform the above work is $7,730. 
 
3Di Mapping: 
 
3Di Mapping will perform aerial photography and mapping in coordination with RYA’s 
surveyors.  Their detailed proposal is attached.  3Di’s total cost for the work is $16,945. 
 
Grace Tree Service: 
 
Grace Tree Service will perform a tree inventory and make preliminary identification of hazard 
trees that may need to be removed.  A full health and risk assessment will be performed at a later 
time. 
 
Work Description: 
Inventorying the basic information consists of identifying the tree species, measure the diameter 
of the tree at 4.5 feet above ground level or diameter breast height (DBH), and mark the tree with 
an aluminum numerical tag.   This information will be recorded into an Excel spreadsheet. 
 
Cost of Services: 
The cost to complete the above work is $2,190.  This is based on 23 ho urs of field and office 
work at $90 per hour and $120 for tags and supplies. 
 
Total Estimated Fees (Not to Exceed without Prior Authorization): $86,295 
 
Schedule and Deliverables: 
 
With the exception of surveying and tree assessment tasks, we expect the preliminary assessment 
phase will take four to six weeks to complete after authorization.  At the end of the preliminary 
assessment phase we will provide the City with a scope and budget to complete the levee 
evaluation. 
 
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



Ruen-Yeager Associates, Inc. OPINION OF PROBABLE COST 2/26/2013

Project Name CDA Levee Certification Project No. Project Manager EKO
Billing Group Name Billing Group No. Billing Group Manager EKO
Project Description Principal Manager DLR

Sec Tnshp Range B&M City County State RYA Role Estimated Start Date 3/6/13
Project Vicinity Estimated End Date

Project Location Billing Submittal Date
Primary Client Billing Payment Date

Project Contact Gordon Dobler
Company City of Coeur d'Alene Project Type

Address 710 E Mullan Ave Subconsultants Client Type
City, State, Zip Coeur d'Alene, ID 83814 GeoEngineers

Phone 769-2216 Fax Cell Anderson-Perry Contract Format
Email Grace Tree Service Billing Format

Dr. Alison Berry Billing Cycle
Billing Contact same Aerial Survey Billing Rates

Company
Address Folder Types

City, State, Zip Administration
Phone Fax Cell Engineering PM
Email Surveying PM

version 11/17/11

P
h

a
se

T
a

sk

Description
Princ/   
Sen
Engr

Senior  
PE/ 
PLS    

Planner

Project
Mgr

PE/
PLS

Engr 
Tech

Planner
Inspect

or
CADD
Tech

Clerical
Survey
Party
Chief

Survey
Crew
2-man

Total
Labor

$

Consult
Expen

$

Direct
Expen

$

Travel
Expen
(days)

Total
Expense

$

Total
Cost

$

Preliminary Assessment Engineering
Project Management 44 $5,500 $5,500
Tie-In to High Ground 16 4 $2,334 $2,334
Closure Options 16 $2,000 $2,000
Interior Drainage Review 16 16 $3,335 $3,335

Subtotal 92 20 $13,169 $13,169
Preliminary Assessment Surveying
Meetings & Coordination 8 $899 $899
Set and coordinate targets 8 32 $5,316 $5,316
Survey covered areas 10 40 $6,645 $6,645
Locate Trees and tag 32 $4,417 $4,417
Additional Control 10 $1,380 $1,380
Boundary Surveying 12 8 40 $7,537 $7,537
Subtotal 38 8 154 $26,194 $26,194

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

Subtotal

Total 92 38 28 154 $39,363 $39,363
Billing Rates $155 $139 $125 $112 $107 $67 $100 $83 $58 $71 $138 100% 115% 115% $123 100% 100%
Total $ $11,500 $4,269 $2,337 $21,257 $39,363 $39,363

Project Manager: Total
Reviewed By: Retainer

EKO
DLR

Prime Consultant

$39,363

Road/Highways
Local Government

20 scale CDA Levee_OPC for 20121 Cost Plus Estimate 1

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



Description
Associate
(Homza)

Project 
Engineer 2 

(Lyle Stone)

Staff 
Engineer 3 

(Erik Arnson)

Staff 
Engineer 1

(Carnie) Admnstrtr 3 Total Hours
Total Labor 

Cost

Geotechncial Engineering
Review information 4 20 4 28 $2,960
Site Reconn 16 10 26 $3,020
Develop Scope 8 2 10 $1,180
Hydrology and Hydraulics
Review information 2 8 10 $1,050
Coordination w/ FEMA 2 6 8 $870
Site Reconn 8 8 16 $2,040
Develop Scope 10 12 22 $2,730

Labor Hours 22 28 32 34 4 120 $13,850
Labor Rate (Rates from  Schedule Cha $165 $120 $110 $90 $70
Cost $3,630 $3,360 $3,520 $3,060 $280 $13,850

Total Labor Cost $13,850

s

Unit Unit Cost

3 $884.00
140 $0.56

$18,242.40

$1,824.24

$20,066.64

Cost Total

$831
$2,652

Contingency (10%)

GRAND TOTAL

$4,392.40

City of Couer D'Alene
Flood Protection Works Certification

GeoEngineers, Inc.
Time-and-Expense Detailed Cost Estimate

APC (6% of labor)
Type

Admin Allocation (6% of labor)
Travel (Airfare and Lodging)
Mileage (rate on Schedule Charges)
Equipment
Subcontracted Services (cost +15%)
Total Reimbursables

$831

$0
$0

$78

Total (Labor + Expenses)

File No. 0570-085-00
January 3, 2006 G  e o E n g i n e e r s 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



Cost Detail Company: RYA-CDA

CDA Address: 3201 North Huetter Road, Suite 102 

PN: 7008-356 Coeur 'd Alene

Contact: Eric Olson

Phone: (208)265-4629

Fax: (208)263-0404

Project Billing Type Hourly Fee

FEMA & USACE Meetings 

& Coordination

City & Work Group 

Meetings
Review of All Data

Staff Category Possible Staff Rate ($/hr) Units/Hrs Fee Units/Hrs Fee Units/Hrs Fee Units/Hrs Fee

Senior Engineer III  J. Hollopeter;E Zitterkopf $135.00 2 $270.00 2 $270.00 4 $540.00 8 $1,080.00

Senior Engineer II J.Wells $130.00 12 $1,560.00 20 $2,600.00 10 $1,300.00 42 $5,460.00

Project Engineer IV A. Robinson $120.00 $0.00 $0.00 4 $480.00 4 $480.00

Senior Technician II $90.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Senior Technican III $95.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$1,830.00 $2,870.00 $2,320.00 $7,020.00

Outside Services

Item Rate

TOTALS

Task 1Professional Services

Professional Services Subtotal

TYPE OF PROJECT

Task 3Task 2

Item Rate Units Charge Units Charge Units Charge Units Charge

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00

Item Rate Units Charge Units Charge Units Charge Units Charge

Mileage $0.565 380 $214.70 760 $429.40 $0.00 1140 $644.10

Mileage for 1/2-Ton or Greater $0.750 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Shipping $8.40 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Meals $21.00 1 $21.00 2 $42.00 $0.00 3 $63.00

Postage $5.25 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Misc. Project Materials $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Lodging $78.75 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Copies $0.10 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

Computer rental $22.83 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.585 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0 $0.00

$235.70 $471.40 $0.00 $707.10

$2,070.00 $3,350.00 $2,320.00 $7,730.00TOTALS (Rounded up to the nearest 

Reimbursables Subtotal

Reimbursables

Outside Services Subtotal

Anderson Perry- Walla Walla,Wa

PN: 7008-356-00/Doc:  Cost Detail Ver 02-25-2013.xls Page 1 of 1
RYA

2/25/2013

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



 

Mapping Excellence 
 www.3DiMapping.com 

Project # 13-049 V2 
 
February 21, 2013 
 

 
 

Dusty B. Obermayer 
Ruen-Yeager & Associates, Inc. 
3201 North Huetter Road, Suite 102 
Coeur d’ Alene, ID 83814 
 
Re: Mapping Services for the CDA Flood Works 
 
 
Dusty, 
 
Upon notice to proceed, 3Di will provide aerial mapping services of the CDA Flood Works site 
located in Coeur d’ Alene, ID.  The site will be mapped at a scale of 1” = 20’ with ½’ contour 
interval with full feature data collection.  Color orthophotography will be generated at a ground 
pixel resolution of .15’ pixel.   
 
Surveying 
Prior to the flight we will need ground control points premarked in order for these points to be 
visible in the photography.  These surveyed control points provide the accuracy and scale 
requirements for the project.  For the photogrammetry option it will require a total of 17 control 
targets throughout the site.   Supplemental ground shots beneath dense trees on the site would 
be helpful and encouraged to increase the accuracy of those areas for this task. Target 
specifications and point locations will be provided upon notification to proceed, all surveying is 
being performed by the client. 
 
Aerial Photography 
The project area will be flown at a GSD (ground sample distance) of 3cm with a planned 
mission of 4 flight lines and 36 exposures.  Imagery will be acquired with a state of the art digital 
large format mapping camera with current factory calibration certificate.  All photography will be 
flown in stereo (overlapping) to support photogrammetric mapping and will meet industry 
standards for photography of this type.   
 
Mapping 
The project area will be mapped with full feature collection at a map scale of 1” = 20’ with 
½‘contours.  All vector based mapping will include topography at the prescribed contour interval 
l with spot elevations and planimetry features standard for this scale of mapping such as roads, 
buildings, hydrography, fences, utilities, and vegetation etc within the project area. Additional 
layers collected at this scale include parking/ road paint lines and utilities.  3Di has developed a 
naming convention layer list which categorizes features for ease of use within AutoCad.   
 
Orthophotography 
Each option will produce color orthophotography at .15’ pixel resolution using new photography. 
The ortho imagery will be cleaned and balanced to merge all of the individual tiles into one 
matching image for the compressed image delivery.  The digital orthophoto data for the project  
 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



 

Mapping Excellence 
 www.3DiMapping.com 

 
area will be delivered on CD-ROM in TIF format with a TFW reference file along with a 
compressed version with all the tiles provided in one image.  
 
Deliverables 

 Mapping of features, DTM, and ½’ contours in AutoCAD format 
 Color orthophotography in uncompressed TIF/TFW format 
 Color orthophotography in compressed SID/SDW format 
 Color orthophoto mosaics of project area in SID/SDW format 
 Project map with flight lines, exposure points, control locations, and project boundary, 

superimposed over the project orthophotography 
 Large format glossy image plot of project area 
 Large format plot showing features and contours, color on bond paper 
 Project metadata (project technical details) in PDF format, standard 3Di  layout 

 
 
Schedule 
Once flown and surveyed, the mapping will take 4 to 5 weeks to produce.  We recommend 
planning for a total project duration of 5 to 6 weeks to allow for image acquisition and surveying. 
Also, recommend flying either mission in mid to late March before “leaf-on”. 
 
Project Cost 
 DTM and full feature mapping with ½’ contours  $15,685 
 Orthophotography at .15’ pixel resolution   $  1,260    
       Total Cost $16,945 
  
 
We appreciate the opportunity to present this proposal for your review and consideration.  
Please contact Bret Hazell or myself if you have any questions or if you would like us to 
proceed. 
 

3Di West 

 
Scott Wilson 
Project Manager 
 

 

 

 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012



 

Mapping Excellence 
 www.3DiMapping.com 

 

Project Map 

 

                       

RESOLUTION NO. 13-012









ANNOUNCEMENTS 





PUBLIC HEARINGS 



PRESENTATION BY  
SHAWN KOORN, HDR RATE 

ANALYST, & SID FREDRICKSON, 
WASTEWATER SUPERINTENDEMT 


	Agenda
	Minutes 02/19/13
	Consent Resolution 13-012
	SR - Riverstone East 
	SR - 11th Street Marina/Assignment of Lease
	SR - Flood Works Certification
	Cemetery Lot Transfer - Espe
	Approval of Beer/Wine License - The Garnet
	Approval of Beer/Wine License - Pilgrim's
	Appointments to Design Review Commission, Parks & Recreation Commission, Parking Commission
	Public Hearing - Wastewater Rates/Fee Increase



